

Document: Emergency Rule, **Register Page Number:** 27 IR 1586

Source: February 1, 2004, Indiana Register, Volume 27, Number 5

Disclaimer: This document was created from the files used to produce the official CD-ROM Indiana Register.

TITLE 65 STATE LOTTERY COMMISSION

LSA Document #03-314(E)

DIGEST

Amends 65 IAC 5-5 concerning independent Daily3 selection events, the addition of midday drawings, multidraws, maximum purchase increments, and other minor related matters. Amends 65 IAC 5-6 concerning independent Daily4 selection events, the addition of midday drawings, multidraws, maximum purchase increments, and other minor related matters. Amends 65 IAC 5-9 concerning independent Daily4 selection events, the addition of midday drawings, multidraws, and other minor related matters. Effective December 10, 2003.

65 IAC 5-5-1	65 IAC 5-6-4
65 IAC 5-5-1.5	65 IAC 5-6-5
65 IAC 5-5-2	65 IAC 5-6-6
65 IAC 5-5-3	65 IAC 5-9-1
65 IAC 5-5-4	65 IAC 5-9-1.5
65 IAC 5-5-5	65 IAC 5-9-2
65 IAC 5-5-6	65 IAC 5-9-3
65 IAC 5-6-1	65 IAC 5-9-4
65 IAC 5-6-1.5	65 IAC 5-9-9
65 IAC 5-6-2	65 IAC 5-9-12
65 IAC 5-6-3	

SECTION 1. 65 IAC 5-5-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-5-1 Name

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 1. The collective name of this the on-line game games conducted pursuant to this rule is "Daily3". As used in this rule, the term "Daily3" shall include both Daily3 – Evening and Daily3 – Midday unless context requires otherwise. (State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-5-1; emergency rule filed Jul 6, 1990, 5:00 p.m.: 13 IR 2009; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1587)

SECTION 2. 65 IAC 5-5-1.5 IS ADDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-5-1.5 Independent on-line games

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 1.5. (a) Daily3 shall be conducted as two (2) separate and independent on-line games designated Daily3 – Evening and Daily3 – Midday, respectively. On-line tickets in the Daily3 – Evening on-line game are not associated with the Daily3 – Midday on-line game and vice versa. The two (2) on-line games shall have separate selection events, winning numbers, and prizes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the odds, play styles, and prizes shall be the same in all Daily3 selection events.

(b) A multidraw ticket in the Daily3 – Evening on-line game shall be for the next Daily3 – Evening selection event(s). A multidraw ticket in the Daily3 – Midday on-line game shall be for the next Daily3 – Midday selection event(s). (State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-5-1.5; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1587)

SECTION 3. 65 IAC 5-5-2 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-5-2 Definitions

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 2. (a) The definitions in this section apply throughout this rule.

(b) “Box play” means a play designated as such when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily3 containing three (3) numbers which may be drawn in any order.

(c) “Combo play” means a play designated as such when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily3 containing a play which is split between a straight play and a box play.

(d) **“Daily3 – Evening” means the Daily3 on-line game associated with selection events conducted in the evening.**

(e) **“Daily3 – Midday” means the Daily3 on-line game associated with selection events conducted in the afternoon.**

(f) “Play” means a selection of three (3) numbers applicable to a particular selection event for Daily3.

(g) “Quick pick” means a play randomly generated by a terminal.

(h) “Straight play” means a play designated as such when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily3 containing three (3) numbers in the order in which they will be drawn.

(i) “Six-way box play” means a play designated a box play when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily3 containing three (3) different numbers which may be drawn in any order.

(j) “Six-way combo play” means a combo play containing three (3) different numbers.

(k) “Three-way box play” means a play designated as a box play when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily3 containing three (3) numbers, two (2) of which are the same, which may be drawn in any order.

(l) “Three-way combo play” means a combo play containing three (3) numbers, two (2) of which are the same.

(m) “Winning numbers” means three (3) numbers determined in a ~~selection event applicable to specific~~ **Daily3 – Evening or Daily3 – Midday selection event.** *(State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-5-2; emergency rule filed Jul 6, 1990, 5:00 p.m.: 13 IR 2010; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1587)*

SECTION 4. 65 IAC 5-5-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-5-3 Ticket price

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 3. Unless otherwise requested by the purchaser, the price of an on-line ticket containing one (1) play for Daily3 shall be one dollar (\$1). The price of an on-line ticket containing one (1) play for Daily3 may be increased by the purchaser in one dollar (\$1) increments up to a maximum of ~~five ten~~ **dollars (\$5) (\$10).** *(State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-5-3; emergency rule filed Jul 6, 1990, 5:00 p.m.: 13 IR 2010; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1587)*

SECTION 5. 65 IAC 5-5-4 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-5-4 Procedure for playing

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 4. (a) An on-line ticket for Daily3 shall represent one (1) play. An on-line ticket for Daily3 shall be purchased by one (1) of the following methods:

(1) The purchaser may submit a completed play slip (if play slips are provided by the commission) which indicates a play to an authorized on-line retailer who shall generate an on-line ticket.

(2) The purchaser may advise an authorized on-line retailer of the numbers contained in the purchaser's play and the type of play, and the on-line retailer shall generate an on-line ticket.

(3) The purchaser may request a quick pick from an authorized on-line retailer who shall generate an on-line ticket with a random play.

(b) An on-line ticket is the only valid proof of a play and the only valid receipt for claiming a prize ~~in~~ **resulting from a Daily3 selection event**. A play slip shall have no pecuniary or prize value and shall not constitute evidence of purchase of an on-line ticket or a play.

(c) An on-line ticket is effective for the selection event indicated on the on-line ticket. **If a purchaser fails to specifically request Daily3 – Evening or Daily3 – Midday, the retailer may issue an on-line ticket for the next scheduled drawing.** Subject to the restrictions of 65 IAC 5-2-9, the commission may offer multidraw on-line tickets for Daily3 – **Evening or Daily3 – Midday selection events** which are effective for up to ~~seven (7)~~ **twenty-eight (28)** consecutive selection events. **Daily3 multidraw on-line tickets are limited to the on-line game for which they were purchased and cannot alternate between Daily3 – Evening and Daily3 – Midday on-line games.**

(d) Sales of on-line tickets for Daily3 **selection events** shall be suspended prior to the time of ~~each~~ **the associated** selection event for ~~Daily3~~ at a time determined by the director.

(e) Sales of on-line tickets containing a particular play shall be suspended if the total liability of the commission for winning on-line tickets containing that play would exceed an amount established by the director. No person shall be entitled to purchase an on-line ticket containing any particular play if such play has been suspended, and neither the commission, the director, nor any employee of the commission shall be liable for the inability of any person to purchase an on-line ticket containing a particular play.

(f) On-line entry coupons ~~shall~~ **may** be generated by terminals for certain purchases of on-line tickets for Daily3. (*State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-5-4; emergency rule filed Jul 6, 1990, 5:00 p.m.: 13 IR 2010; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1588*)

SECTION 6. 65 IAC 5-5-5, AS AMENDED AT 26 IR 3057, SECTION 1, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-5-5 Determination of winners

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 5. (a) Selection events for determination of winning numbers in Daily3 – **Evening** shall be held each day in accordance with 65 IAC 5-3-7 at a time to be determined by the director. **Selection events for determination of winning numbers in Daily3 – Midday shall be held on Monday through Saturday afternoons in accordance with 65 IAC 5-3-7 at a time designated by the director.**

(b) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily3 selection event on which the three (3) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) straight play applicable to that selection event match the three (3) winning numbers and are in the same order as the three (3) winning numbers wins a prize of five hundred dollars (\$500).

(c) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily3 selection event on which the three (3) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) six-way box play applicable to that selection event match the three (3) winning numbers in any order wins a prize of eighty dollars (\$80).

(d) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily3 selection event on which the three (3) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) three-way

box play applicable to that selection event match the three (3) winning numbers in any order wins a prize of one hundred sixty dollars (\$160).

(e) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily3 selection event on which the three (3) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) six-way combo play applicable to that selection event match the three (3) winning numbers in any order wins a prize of forty dollars (\$40).

(f) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily3 selection event on which the three (3) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) three-way combo play applicable to that selection event match the three (3) winning numbers in any order wins a prize of eighty dollars (\$80).

(g) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily3 selection event on which the three (3) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) six-way combo play applicable to that selection event match the three (3) winning numbers and are in the same order as the three (3) winning numbers wins a prize of two hundred ninety dollars (\$290).

(h) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily3 selection event on which the three (3) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) three-way combo play applicable to that selection event match the three (3) winning numbers and are in the same order as the three (3) winning numbers wins a prize of three hundred thirty dollars (\$330).

(i) If a play eligible for a prize under this section was purchased for more than one dollar (\$1), the prize specified in this section shall be multiplied by a factor equal to the price of the play divided by one dollar (\$1).

~~(j) Commencing on May 1, 2003, and concluding on June 6, 2003, unless earlier terminated by the director, the prizes associated with matching the winning numbers selected in Daily3 selections events conducted at approximately 1:20 p.m., EST, each day (except Sundays) shall be increased by twenty percent (20%). (State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-5-5; emergency rule filed Jul 6, 1990, 5:00 p.m.: 13 IR 2011; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Apr 30, 2003, 10:45 a.m.: 26 IR 3057, eff May 1, 2003; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1588)~~

SECTION 7. 65 IAC 5-5-6 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-5-6 Odds of winning

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 6. (a) The odds of winning a prize in a Daily3 **selection event** with a straight play are approximately one (1) in one thousand (1,000).

(b) The odds of winning a prize in a Daily3 **selection event** with a six-way box play are approximately six (6) in one thousand (1,000).

(c) The odds of winning a prize in a Daily3 **selection event** with a three-way box play are approximately three (3) in one thousand (1,000).

(d) The odds of winning a prize of forty dollars (\$40) in a Daily3 **selection event** with a one dollar (\$1) six-way combo play are approximately six (6) in one thousand (1,000).

(e) The odds of winning a prize of eighty dollars (\$80) in a Daily3 **selection event** with a one dollar (\$1) three-way combo play are approximately three (3) in one thousand (1,000).

(f) The odds of winning a prize of two hundred ninety dollars (\$290) in a Daily3 **selection event** with a one dollar (\$1) six-way combo play are approximately one (1) in one thousand (1,000).

(g) The odds of winning a prize of three hundred thirty dollars (\$330) in a Daily3 **selection event** with a one dollar (\$1) three-way combo play are approximately one (1) in one thousand (1,000). *(State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-5-6; emergency rule filed Jul 6, 1990, 5:00 p.m.: 13 IR 2011; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1589)*

SECTION 8. 65 IAC 5-6-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-6-1 Name

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 1. The collective name of this the on-line game games conducted pursuant to this rule is "Daily4". As used in this rule, the term "Daily4" shall include both Daily4 – Evening and Daily4 – Midday. (State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-6-1; emergency rule filed Jul 6, 1990, 5:00 p.m.: 13 IR 2011; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1589)

SECTION 9. 65 IAC 5-6-1.5 IS ADDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-6-1.5 Independent on-line games

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 1.5. (a) Daily4 shall be conducted as two (2) separate and independent on-line games designated Daily4 – Evening and Daily4 – Midday, respectively. On-line tickets in the Daily4 – Evening on-line game are not associated with the Daily4 – Midday on-line game and vice versa. The two (2) on-line games shall have separate selection events, winning numbers, and prizes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the odds, play styles, and prizes shall be the same in all Daily4 selection events.

(b) A multidraw ticket in the Daily4 – Evening on-line game shall be for the next Daily4 – Evening selection event(s). A multidraw ticket in the Daily4 – Midday on-line game shall be for the next Daily4 – Midday selection event(s). (State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-6-1.5; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1589)

SECTION 10. 65 IAC 5-6-2 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-6-2 Definitions

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 2. (a) The definitions in this section apply throughout this rule.

(b) "Back 3 play" means the selection of the last three (3) numbers applicable to a particular selection event for Daily4.

(c) "Box play" means a play designated as such when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily4 containing either:

(1) four (4) numbers which may be drawn in any order; or

(2) three (3) numbers in a front 3 or back 3 play which may be drawn in any order.

(d) "Combo play" means a play designated as such when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily4 containing either:

(1) a play in which the four (4) numbers are both a straight play and a box play; or

(2) a front 3 or back 3 play in which the three (3) numbers are both a straight play and a box play.

(e) "Daily4 – Evening" means the Daily4 on-line game associated with selection events conducted in the evening.

(f) "Daily4 – Midday" means the Daily4 on-line game associated with selection events conducted in the afternoon.

~~(g)~~ (g) "Four-way box play" means a play designated as a box play when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily4 containing four (4) numbers, three (3) of which are identical.

~~(h)~~ (h) "Four-way combo play" means a play designated as a combo play when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily4 containing four (4) numbers, three (3) of which are identical.

~~(g)~~ (i) “Front 3 play” means the selection of the first three (3) numbers applicable to a particular selection event for Daily4.

~~(h)~~ (j) “Play” means a selection of three (3) or four (4) numbers applicable to a particular selection event for Daily4.

~~(i)~~ (k) “Quick pick” means a play randomly generated by a terminal.

~~(j)~~ (l) “Six-way box play” means a play designated as a box play when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily4 containing either:
(1) two (2) pairs of identical numbers where the four (4) numbers may be drawn in any order; or
(2) in a front 3 or back 3 play, three (3) different front or back three (3) numbers, respectively, which may be drawn in any order.

~~(k)~~ (m) “Six-way combo play” means a play designated a combo play when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily4 containing either:

- (1) two (2) pairs of identical numbers; or
- (2) in a front 3 or back 3 play, three (3) different numbers.

~~(l)~~ (n) “Straight play” means a play designated as such when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily4 containing either:

- (1) four (4) numbers in the order in which they will be drawn; or
- (2) three (3) numbers in a front 3 or back 3 play in the order in which they will be drawn.

~~(m)~~ (o) “Three-way box play” means a play designated as such when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily4 containing a front 3 or back 3 play in which two (2) of the relevant numbers are the same and which may be drawn in any order.

~~(n)~~ (p) “Three-way combo play” means a play designated as such when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily4 containing a front 3 or back 3 play in which two (2) of the relevant numbers are the same.

~~(o)~~ (q) “Twelve-way box play” means a play designated as a box play when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily4 containing four (4) numbers, two (2) of which are the same, which may be drawn in any order.

~~(p)~~ (r) “Twelve-way combo play” means a play designated as a combo play when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily4 containing four (4) numbers, two (2) of which are the same.

~~(q)~~ (s) “Twenty-four-way box play” means a play designated as a box play when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily4 containing four (4) different numbers which may be drawn in any order.

~~(r)~~ (t) “Twenty-four-way combo play” means a play designated as a combo play when an on-line ticket is purchased for Daily4 containing four (4) different numbers.

~~(s)~~ (u) “Winning numbers” means four (4) numbers, or, in the case of a front 3 or back 3 play, the first or last three (3) numbers, respectively, determined in a **specific Daily4 – Evening or Daily4 – Midday** selection event. ~~applicable to Daily4.~~ (State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-6-2; emergency rule filed Jul 6, 1990, 5:00 p.m.: 13 IR 2012; emergency rule filed Feb 10, 1995, 11:00 a.m.: 18 IR 1484; errata filed Apr 26, 1995, 4:00 p.m.: 18 IR 2261; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1590)

SECTION 11. 65 IAC 5-6-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-6-3 Ticket price

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 3. Unless otherwise requested by the purchaser, the price of an on-line ticket containing one (1) play for Daily4 shall be one dollar (\$1). The price of an on-line ticket containing one (1) play for Daily4 may be increased by the purchaser in one dollar (\$1) increments up to a maximum of ~~five ten~~ dollars (~~\$5~~). (~~\$10~~). (State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-6-3; emergency rule filed Jul 6, 1990, 5:00 p.m.: 13 IR 2012; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1591)

SECTION 12. 65 IAC 5-6-4 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-6-4 Procedure for playing

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 4. (a) An on-line ticket for Daily4 shall represent one (1) play. An on-line ticket for Daily4 shall be purchased by one (1) of the following methods:

(1) The purchaser may submit a completed play slip (if play slips are provided by the commission) which indicates a play to an authorized on-line retailer who shall generate an on-line ticket.

(2) The purchaser may advise an authorized on-line retailer of the numbers contained in the purchaser's play and the type of play, and the on-line retailer shall generate an on-line ticket.

(3) The purchaser may request a quick pick from an authorized on-line retailer who shall generate an on-line ticket with a random play.

(b) An on-line ticket is the only valid proof of a play and the only valid receipt for claiming a prize in Daily4. A play slip shall have no pecuniary or prize value and shall not constitute evidence of purchase of an on-line ticket or a play.

(c) An on-line ticket is effective for the selection event indicated on the on-line ticket. **If a purchaser fails to specifically request Daily4 – Evening or Daily4 – Midday, the retailer may issue an on-line ticket for the next scheduled drawing.** Subject to the restrictions of 65 IAC 5-2-9, the commission may offer multidraw on-line tickets for Daily4 – Evening or Daily4 – Midday **selection events** which are effective for up to ~~seven (7)~~ **twenty-eight (28)** consecutive selection events. **Daily4 multidraw on-line tickets are limited to the on-line game for which they were purchased and cannot include plays that alternate between Daily4 – Evening and Daily4 – Midday selection events.**

(d) Sales of on-line tickets for Daily4 **selection events** shall be suspended prior to the time of ~~each~~ **the associated** selection event for ~~Daily4~~ at a time determined by the director.

(e) Sales of on-line tickets containing a particular play shall be suspended if the total liability of the commission for winning on-line tickets containing that play would exceed an amount established by the director. No person shall be entitled to purchase an on-line ticket containing any particular play if such play has been suspended, and neither the commission, the director, nor any employee of the commission shall be liable for the inability of any person to purchase an on-line ticket containing a particular play.

(f) On-line entry coupons may be generated by terminals for certain purchases of on-line tickets for Daily4. *(State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-6-4; emergency rule filed Jul 6, 1990, 5:00 p.m.: 13 IR 2012; emergency rule filed Feb 10, 1995, 11:00 a.m.: 18 IR 1485; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1591)*

SECTION 13. 65 IAC 5-6-5 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-6-5 Determination of winners

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 5. (a) Selection events for determination of winning numbers in Daily4 – **Evening** shall be held each day in accordance with 65 IAC 5-3-7 at a time to be determined by the director. **Selection events for determination of winning numbers in Daily4 – Midday shall be held on Monday through Saturday afternoons in accordance with 65 IAC 5-3-7 at a time designated by the director.**

(b) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the four (4) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) straight play applicable to that selection event match the four (4) winning numbers and are in the same order as the four (4) winning numbers wins a prize of five thousand dollars (\$5,000).

(c) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the four (4) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) twenty-four-way box play applicable to that selection event match the four (4) winning numbers in any order wins a prize of two hundred

dollars (\$200).

(d) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the four (4) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) twelve-way box play applicable to that selection event match the four (4) winning numbers in any order wins a prize of four hundred dollars (\$400).

(e) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the four (4) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) six-way box play applicable to that selection event match the four (4) winning numbers in any order wins a prize of eight hundred dollars (\$800).

(f) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the four (4) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) four-way box play applicable to that selection event match the four (4) winning numbers in any order wins a prize of one thousand two hundred dollars (\$1,200).

(g) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the four (4) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) twenty-four-way combo play applicable to that selection event match the four (4) winning numbers in any order wins a prize of one hundred dollars (\$100).

(h) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the four (4) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) twelve-way combo play applicable to that selection event match the four (4) winning numbers in any order wins a prize of two hundred dollars (\$200).

(i) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the four (4) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) six-way combo play applicable to that selection event match the four (4) winning numbers in any order wins a prize of four hundred dollars (\$400).

(j) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the four (4) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) four-way combo play applicable to that selection event match the four (4) winning numbers in any order wins a prize of six hundred dollars (\$600).

(k) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the four (4) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) twenty-four-way combo play applicable to that selection event match the four (4) winning numbers and are in the same order as the four (4) winning numbers wins a prize of two thousand six hundred dollars (\$2,600).

(l) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the four (4) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) twelve-way combo play applicable to that selection event match the four (4) winning numbers and are in the same order as the four (4) winning numbers wins a prize of two thousand seven hundred dollars (\$2,700).

(m) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the four (4) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) six-way combo play applicable to that selection event match the four (4) winning numbers and are in the same order as the four (4) winning numbers wins a prize of two thousand nine hundred dollars (\$2,900).

(n) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the four (4) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) four-way combo play applicable to that selection event match the four (4) winning numbers and are in the same order as the four (4) winning numbers wins a prize of three thousand one hundred dollars (\$3,100).

(o) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the first or last three (3) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) front 3 or back 3 straight play applicable to that selection event match the first or last, respectively, three (3) winning numbers and are in the same order as those three (3) winning numbers wins a prize of five hundred dollars (\$500).

(p) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the first or last three (3) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) front 3 or back 3 six-way box play applicable to that selection event match the first or last, respectively, three (3) winning numbers in any order wins a prize of eighty dollars (\$80).

(q) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the first or last three (3) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) front 3 or back 3 three-way box play applicable to that selection event match the first or last, respectively, three (3) winning numbers in any order wins a prize of one hundred sixty dollars (\$160).

(r) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the first or last three (3) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) front 3 or back 3 six-way combo play applicable to that selection event match the first or last, respectively, three (3) winning numbers in any order wins a prize of forty dollars (\$40).

(s) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the first or last three (3) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) front 3 or back 3 three-way combo play applicable to that selection event match the first or last, respectively, three (3) winning numbers in any order wins a prize of eighty dollars (\$80).

(t) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the first or last three (3) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) front 3 or back 3 six-way combo play applicable to that selection event match the first or last, respectively, three (3) winning numbers and are in the same order as those three (3) winning numbers wins a prize of two hundred ninety dollars (\$290).

(u) Each owner of a valid on-line ticket for a Daily4 selection event on which the first or last three (3) numbers in a one dollar (\$1) front 3 or back 3 three-way combo play applicable to that selection event match the first or last, respectively, three (3) winning numbers and are in the same order as those three (3) winning numbers wins a prize of three hundred thirty dollars (\$330).

(v) If a play eligible for a prize under this section was purchased for more than one dollar (\$1), the prize specified in this section shall be multiplied by a factor equal to the price of the play divided by one dollar (\$1). (*State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-6-5; emergency rule filed Jul 6, 1990, 5:00 p.m.: 13 IR 2013; emergency rule filed Feb 10, 1995, 11:00 a.m.: 18 IR 1485; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1591*)

SECTION 14. 65 IAC 5-6-6 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-6-6 Odds of winning

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 6. (a) The odds of winning a prize in a Daily4 **selection event** with a straight play are approximately one (1) in ten thousand (10,000).

(b) The odds of winning a prize in a Daily4 **selection event** with a twenty-four-way box play are approximately twenty-four (24) in ten thousand (10,000).

(c) The odds of winning a prize in a Daily4 **selection event** with a twelve-way box play are approximately twelve (12) in ten thousand (10,000).

(d) The odds of winning a prize in a Daily4 **selection event** with a six-way box play are approximately six (6) in ten thousand (10,000).

(e) The odds of winning a prize in a Daily4 **selection event** with a four-way box play are approximately four (4) in ten thousand (10,000).

(f) The odds of winning a prize of one hundred dollars (\$100) in a Daily4 **selection event** with a one dollar (\$1) twenty-four-way combo play are approximately twenty-four (24) in ten thousand (10,000).

(g) The odds of winning a prize of two hundred dollars (\$200) in a Daily4 **selection event** with a one dollar (\$1) twelve-way combo play are approximately twelve (12) in ten thousand (10,000).

(h) The odds of winning a prize of four hundred dollars (\$400) in a Daily4 **selection event** with a one dollar (\$1) six-way combo play are approximately six (6) in ten thousand (10,000).

(i) The odds of winning a prize of six hundred dollars (\$600) in a Daily4 **selection event** with a one dollar (\$1) four-way combo play are approximately four (4) in ten thousand (10,000).

(j) The odds of winning a prize of two thousand six hundred dollars (\$2,600) in a Daily4 **selection event** with a one dollar (\$1) twenty-four-way combo play are approximately one (1) in ten thousand (10,000).

(k) The odds of winning a prize of two thousand seven hundred dollars (\$2,700) in a Daily4 **selection event** with a one dollar (\$1) twelve-way combo play are approximately one (1) in ten thousand (10,000).

(l) The odds of winning a prize of two thousand nine hundred dollars (\$2,900) in a Daily4 **selection event** with a one dollar (\$1) six-way combo play are approximately one (1) in ten thousand (10,000).

(m) The odds of winning a prize of three thousand one hundred dollars (\$3,100) in a Daily4 **selection event** with a one dollar (\$1) four-way combo play are approximately one (1) in ten thousand (10,000).

(n) The odds of winning a prize in a Daily4 **selection event** with a front 3 or back 3 straight play are approximately one (1) in one thousand (1,000).

(o) The odds of winning a prize in a Daily4 **selection event** with a front 3 or back 3 six-way box play are approximately six (6) in one thousand (1,000).

(p) The odds of winning a prize in a Daily4 **selection event** with a front 3 or back 3 three-way box play are approximately three (3) in one thousand (1,000).

(q) The odds of winning a prize of forty dollars (\$40) in a Daily4 **selection event** with a one dollar (\$1) front 3 or back 3 six-way combo play are approximately six (6) in one thousand (1,000).

(r) The odds of winning a prize of eighty dollars (\$80) in a Daily4 **selection event** with a one dollar (\$1) front 3 or back 3 three-way combo play are approximately three (3) in one thousand (1,000).

(s) The odds of winning a prize of two hundred ninety dollars (\$290) in a Daily4 **selection event** with a one dollar (\$1) front 3 or back 3 six-way combo play are approximately one (1) in one thousand (1,000).

(t) The odds of winning a prize of three hundred thirty dollars (\$330) in a Daily4 **selection event** with a one dollar (\$1) front 3 or back 3 three-way combo play are approximately one (1) in one thousand (1,000). (*State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-6-6; emergency rule filed Jul 6, 1990, 5:00 p.m.: 13 IR 2014; emergency rule filed Feb 10, 1995, 11:00 a.m.: 18 IR 1486; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1593*)

SECTION 15. 65 IAC 5-9-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-9-1 Name

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 1. The collective name of this the on-line game games conducted pursuant to this rule is "Lucky 5". As used in this rule, the term "Lucky 5" shall include both Lucky 5 – Evening and Lucky 5 – Midday. (*State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-9-1; emergency rule filed Oct 29, 1993, 5:00 p.m.: 17 IR 412; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1593; errata filed Jan 5, 2004, 12:30 p.m.: 27 IR 1575*)

SECTION 16. 65 IAC 5-9-1.5 IS ADDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-9-1.5 Independent on-line games

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 1.5. (a) Lucky 5 shall be conducted as two (2) separate and independent on-line games designated Lucky 5 – Evening and Lucky 5 – Midday, respectively. On-line tickets in the Lucky 5 – Evening on-line game are not associated with the Lucky 5 – Midday on-line game and vice versa. The two (2) on-line games shall have separate selection events, winning numbers, and prizes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the odds, play styles, and prizes shall be the same in all Lucky 5 selection events.

(b) A multidraw ticket in the Lucky 5 – Evening on-line game shall be for the next Lucky 5 – Evening selection event(s). A multidraw ticket in the Lucky 5 – Midday on-line game shall be for the next Lucky 5 – Midday selection event(s). *(State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-9-1.5; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1594)*

SECTION 17. 65 IAC 5-9-2 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-9-2 Definitions

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 2. (a) The definitions in this section apply throughout this rule.

(b) “Board” means five (5) numbers that appear on a lottery ticket in relation to a particular selection event for Lucky 5.

(c) “Jackpot amount” means the prize determined pursuant to section 8(a) of this rule.

(d) “Lucky 5 – Evening” means the Lucky 5 on-line [sic.] game associated with selection events conducted in the evening.

(e) “Lucky 5 – Midday” means the Lucky 5 on-line game associated with selection events conducted in the afternoon.

~~(f)~~ **(f) “Panel” means two (2) boards applicable to a particular selection event for Lucky 5.**

~~(g)~~ **(g) “Pari-mutuel prize” means a jackpot amount whereby the winners evenly divide twenty-six and six-tenths percent (26.6%) of the sales receipts for the Lucky 5 selection event, but shall not in any event exceed fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000) per board or the announced jackpot amount.**

~~(h)~~ **(h) “Play slip” means a form indicating a play in Lucky 5 which contains one (1) or more game grids and is used in producing an on-line ticket.**

~~(i)~~ **(i) “Quick pick” means a board randomly generated by a terminal.**

~~(j)~~ **(j) “Retailer” means a person, other than an agency or political subdivision of the state, who sells lottery tickets on behalf of the commission pursuant to a retailer contract.**

~~(k)~~ **(k) “Winning Lucky 5 numbers” means the five (5) numbers determined in a specific Lucky 5 – Evening or Lucky 5 – Midday selection event and announced as such pursuant to section 9 of this rule.**

~~(l)~~ **(l) “Winnings pool” means the amount of gross sales allocated pursuant to section 5 of this rule.** *(State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-9-2; emergency rule filed Oct 29, 1993, 5:00 p.m.: 17 IR 412; emergency rule filed Nov 12, 1993, 4:00 p.m.: 17 IR 785; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1594)*

SECTION 18. 65 IAC 5-9-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-9-3 Ticket price

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 3. The price of an on-line ticket for a Lucky 5 selection event shall be one dollar (\$1) for each panel represented on the on-

line ticket. (State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-9-3; emergency rule filed Oct 29, 1993, 5:00 p.m.: 17 IR 412; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1594)

SECTION 19. 65 IAC 5-9-4 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-9-4 Procedure for playing

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 4. (a) An on-line ticket for Lucky 5 may represent one (1) or more panels. An on-line ticket for Lucky 5 shall be purchased by any of the following methods:

- (1) The purchaser may submit a hand completed play slip identifying one (1) or more panels to an authorized on-line retailer who shall generate the on-line ticket.
- (2) The purchaser may verbally advise an authorized on-line retailer of the numbers contained in the purchaser's panels, and the on-line retailer shall generate the on-line ticket.
- (3) The purchaser may request a quick pick of one (1) of the following types from an authorized on-line retailer who shall generate an on-line ticket:
 - (A) The purchaser may specify the first board numbers and request a quick pick for the second board numbers. or
 - (B) The purchaser may request a quick pick for the first board numbers and specify the second board numbers. or
 - (C) The purchaser may request a quick pick for both boards in the panel.
- (4) The purchaser may purchase a ticket from a player-activated terminal.

(b) Each board in Lucky 5 shall consist of five (5) numbers from one (1) to thirty-six (36).

(c) An on-line ticket is the only valid proof of a board and the only valid receipt for claiming a prize ~~in~~ **resulting from a Lucky 5 selection event**. A play slip shall have no pecuniary or prize value and shall not constitute evidence of purchase of an on-line ticket, a panel, or a board.

(d) Unless otherwise indicated on the on-line ticket, an on-line ticket for Lucky 5 – **Evening** is effective for the next scheduled Lucky 5 – **Evening** selection event. **Unless otherwise indicated on the on-line ticket, an on-line ticket for Lucky 5 – Midday is effective for the next scheduled Lucky 5 – Midday selection event. If a purchaser fails to specifically request Lucky 5 – Evening or Lucky 5 – Midday, the retailer may issue an on-line ticket for the next scheduled drawing.** Subject to the restrictions of 65 IAC 5-2-9, the commission may offer multidraw on-line tickets for Lucky 5 which are effective for the following numbers of selection events:

- (1) Two (2).
- (2) Three (3).
- (3) Four (4).
- (4) Five (5).
- (5) Ten (10).
- (6) Twenty-eight (28).**

Lucky 5 multidraw on-line tickets are limited to the on-line games for which they were purchased and cannot alternate between Lucky 5 – Evening and Lucky 5 – Midday selection events.

(e) Sales of on-line tickets for Lucky 5 **selection events** shall be suspended prior to the time of ~~each Lucky 5~~ **the associated** selection event at a time determined by the director.

(f) Sales of on-line tickets for a Lucky 5 selection event containing a particular board may be suspended if the total liability of the commission for winning on-line tickets containing that board would exceed an amount established by the director. No person shall be entitled to purchase an on-line ticket containing any particular board if such board has been suspended, and neither the commission, the director, nor any employee of the commission shall be liable for the inability of any person to purchase an on-line ticket containing a particular board.

(g) If a play slip is used to select a player's numbers for a Lucky 5 selection event, the play slip must have been issued by the lottery and completed by hand by the player. The play slip will be scanned by the on-line terminal or, in the event of a problem,

keyed in by hand.

(h) The director may, in the director's sole discretion, provide for the generation of on-line entry tickets from terminals for certain purchases of on-line tickets for Lucky 5. *(State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-9-4; emergency rule filed Oct 29, 1993, 5:00 p.m.: 17 IR 412; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1594)*

SECTION 20. 65 IAC 5-9-9 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-9-9 Determination of winning numbers

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 9. ~~The commission shall conduct Lucky 5 Selection events seven (7) times for determination of winning numbers in~~ **Lucky 5 – Evening shall be held** each week day in accordance with 65 IAC 5-3-7 at ~~times a time~~ to be determined by the director. **Selection events for determination of winning numbers in Lucky 5 – Midday shall be held on Monday through Saturday afternoons in accordance with 65 IAC 5-3-7 at a time designated by the director.** Each Lucky 5 selection event shall determine five (5) **winning** Lucky 5 ~~winning~~ numbers. *(State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-9-9; emergency rule filed Oct 29, 1993, 5:00 p.m.: 17 IR 413; emergency rule filed Jul 25, 1995, 12:00 p.m.: 18 IR 3401; emergency rule filed Aug 15, 1996, 1:30 p.m.: 20 IR 25; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1595)*

SECTION 21. 65 IAC 5-9-12 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

65 IAC 5-9-12 Odds of winning

Authority: IC 4-30-3-7; IC 4-30-3-9

Affected: IC 4-30

Sec. 12. (a) The odds of a single board winning the jackpot prize in a Lucky 5 **selection event by matching all five (5) of the winning Lucky 5 numbers** are approximately 1:376,992.

(b) The odds of a single board winning a two hundred dollar (\$200) prize in a Lucky 5 **selection event** by matching four (4) of the winning Lucky 5 numbers are approximately 1:2,432.2.

(c) The odds of a single board winning a three dollar (\$3) prize in a Lucky 5 **selection event** by matching three (3) of the winning ~~Lucky 5~~ numbers are approximately 1:81.1.

(d) The overall odds of winning a prize in a Lucky 5 **selection event** are approximately 1:59.56. *(State Lottery Commission; 65 IAC 5-9-12; emergency rule filed Oct 29, 1993, 5:00 p.m.: 17 IR 414; readopted filed Nov 30, 2001, 11:02 a.m.: 25 IR 1268; emergency rule filed Dec 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.: 27 IR 1595)*

LSA Document #03-314(E)

Filed with Secretary of State: December 10, 2003, 12:15 p.m.